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| am honoured to present this Annual Report, my first since taking up
my present post in July this year. Amidst keen competition in the postal
and courier market in 2016/17, Hongkong Post continued with its efforts
to manage costs and generate revenue in order to strengthen the financial
performance of the Post Office Trading Fund. | am pleased to announce that
we have continued to achieve an operating profit, of $153 million for the year,
representing a rate of return on the average net fixed assets of 4.7 %.

Although transactional mails are decreasing in the face of advances in modern
communications technology, the role of Hongkong Post in carrying out the
physical delivery of postal items remains as important as it ever has been.
The evolving landscape is very competitive, however, and at Hongkong Post
we have endeavoured to transform our corporate and business strategies in
order to keep up with the rapid changes in the external environment, while
continuing to build upon our trusted public image. This is part of our constant
efforts over many years to serve the community, the public and individual
customers better.
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Postal operations are labour-intensive. In order to enhance our operational
efficiency and reduce our costs, we have been embracing opportunities
for the wider use of information technology and for work process
re-engineering. In all this, however, we never lose sight of our primary
commitment — of working in tandem with our customers. That lies behind
our formulation of various business strategies and new initiatives to meet the
changing needs of our customers in this fast-moving era of new technology,
new competition, and new commercial practices, while also increasing our
competitive edge. For example, we have continued to improve our mail tracking
capabilities by making a number of enhancements to our system. We have
also introduced a new e-signature option at our post office counters, further
improving our customers’ experience in using our services.

Hongkong Post faces keen competition in its service sector. We are fully aware
of the need to provide services in support of the booming e-Commerce industry,
and this has prompted our launch this year of our new "iPostal Station" service.
The iPostal Stations provide a more convenient delivery option for larger items
that would traditionally have been delivered to the door, along with rapid SMS
notifications to recipients. We have continued to roll out more iPostal Stations
throughout the territory, some of which offer 24-hour access, as the popularity
of this service has grown.

We have also been working persistently to help our local SMEs broaden their
sales channels. For example, during the year we have expanded our e-Express
service, which offers end-to-end handling visibility of items with tracking
information, to cover a total of 19 major destinations worldwide. In addition,
to provide e-Commerce platform providers with a better service, we have been
working closely with several of these providers to develop dedicated solutions
for shipping their items overseas.

Alongside all these, we are continuing to ensure that our workforce remains
equipped to respond professionally and effectively to the constantly evolving
business and operational environment, by offering regular staff training and
professional development opportunities. We do ask customers to support
our staff by ensuring that their mail is correctly addressed, a practice that
enables us to better carry out our core postal delivery duties to a high level of
professionalism.

In the year ahead, we will continue to move ahead with projects, enhancement
measures and service innovations that will enhance our operational efficiency
and effectiveness, improve our customers' experience in using our services, and
contribute to the longerterm sustainable development of Hongkong Post.
These outcomes will involve harnessing the collaborative efforts of our entire
team, and working in concert to ensure that Hongkong Post continues to grow
sustainably into the future.

G —

A

Gordon LEUNG
Postmaster General
and General Manager of the Post Office Trading Fund

BBBBEFIR 2016/17
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Hongkong Post Strategy Map

PURPOSE, VISION, MISSION, VALUES

Our Purpose - Linking People, Delivering
Business

In Linking People, Hongkong Post strives to fulfill our social obligation
to bring people together locally and around the world by delivering
correspondence and merchandise promptly and reliably at affordable
prices.
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In Delivering Business, Hongkong Post creates added value for the
economy of Hong Kong by providing business solutions to different sectors
and maintaining the viability of Hongkong Post through innovative service
provision.

&/ & Linking People

o e | - moay - REABEES

0 Commitment Care for Customers from the
Strategic o
. . o ALEE eart
Direction T s BEAREEE
o BELES Care for Colleagues from the

Heart

Open Communication

ERED Do BEEME L. BEBE Do MBER
. : Learning & Growth : Customers : Financial
Strategic :
Perspectives
e Do BEHRKAL Do BENEAKR e BEBETE
. : World Class People : Customer Focused Organisation : Sustained Profitability
Strategies
5@ Ea P oo REREAS L. PEEERE P RAEERE
Cluster of Goals : Management Succession Know the Customers Productivity Enhancement
o« BRATIEESD P . BREEEE Do BmEZHRA
Job Competency : Customer Satisfaction : Cost Control

- BRATHE e BUBERR e mpEBRE

Career Development Customer Loyalty Business Growth
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s MEBETIR
High Morale

o EWMHAH
Cultural Alignment

° KARRIFEE
Good Employer

o HENBENL

Learning Organisation

BOEBER
Business Expansion

Loss Minimisation
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Our Vision

* To be recognised in Hong Kong as an outstanding service organisation

* To be recognised worldwide as an outstanding postal service

Our Mission
* To be a totally committed and valued workforce

* To achieve consistently the highest levels of customer satisfaction

¢ To be a viable business with sufficient resources to invest in our future

* To anticipate changes and respond proactively

Our Values
* To care about our customers and our colleagues

* To excel through development, teamwork and innovation

IETE# Delivering Business

o EEME o TEIRHEER o fEm kg
Productivity Proactivity Excellence
o HE AR EEER SRR
Innovation Development Anticipation
° MBME
Value for Money
e NBBE
: Internal Processes
 BEAIFRE Do BB RRRIE Do BREEEEGE s MY SFERME
Innovate for the Future : World Class Facilities : Modern Business Reputable Brand
Management Systems
© SREBHE Lo RIBRREM P e BATRNRE . BRALERS
Business Diversification : Cost-effective & Efficient Process Efficiency Local Corporate Image
. PREmAE i Facilities Do SCRAMBHL P EEERRE
Strategic Cooperation Do TERERS : World Class IT : International Postal
o JEEEMGELE i Safe Workplace ~ g e Reputation

Long-term Viability Quality Performance Data / e BITHEEME

Information : Social Responsibility
c2EEEEE Do ETBRREH

Total Quality Management : Environmental

Excellence Responsibility

o EBETIGES
Match Competitors
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Directorate Team

1 RIAR:E
Mr. Gordon LEUNG
ERBBER

Postmaster General

o2 BT s
Mr. Leo YAN
e (EF) | BEEBIR
BEER (AE%R)
Director (Operations) /
Acting Assistant Postmaster
General (Corporate Development)

03 MRiEmER LT
Ms. Kitty AU YEUNG
HPNE  BEEEBRHEER
(ABER)
Departmental Secretary /
Acting Assistant Postmaster
General (Corporate Development)

o4 BEBY T
Ms. Teresa AU
ERNHHEER (BK)

Assistant Postmaster
General (Postal)

05 BRIk E

Mr. Danny CHAN
BE (RBAR - ERERHEE)

Director (Product Development,
Marketing and Sales)

o6 BKRRTE
Mr. NGAI Wing Chit
EEHNHEIBER

Deputy Postmaster General

o7 BPBYL

Ms. Estella CHOW
ERBHRMEER (EBRRE)

Assistant Postmaster General
(Business Development)

08 MiJKBA S £

Mr. Patrick A LIN

Mg (HHNEEK) | BEEEBHR

BEER (AMBRR)

Director (External Affairs) / Acting

Assistant Postmaster General
(Corporate Development)
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Ms. Lisa CHAN
BE (%)

Director (Finance)

aRER T E
Mr. Alex YEUNG

ae (BARRSRE) /
EEEEHNRHEER
(FMER)

Director (Information
System Services) /

Acting Assistant Postmaster
General (Corporate
Development)
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Hongkong Post
FHEBH

c FREBYHYEER
(ARER)

o MPIWE
o BE (B AR

¢ Assistant Postmaster
General (Corporate
Development)

* Departmental
Secretary

* Director (Information
System Services)

HERR
Corporate
Development

o ITRET

c BIEER

o REIMER

* B ERLRY

¢ Administrative
Services

e Management Services

e Planning and
Development

¢ Information System
Services

The Organisation

BEEBBER

Postmaster General

BEEBHEER

Deputy Postmaster General

c BETWHYEER
(EBERE)

e BEE(RKIE - #
BRIEE)

o Assistant Postmaster
General

(Business
Development)

e Director (Product
Development,
Marketing and Sales)

EBRBE
Business
Development

 RGHE - R
Ri4E

© BRIE

« BFMIE

o RIBE
 EERMEE

< BER
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e Product Development,
Marketing and Sales

* Speedpost

e Customer Relationship
Management

* Local Mail

e Certification Authority
Monitoring

e Stamps and Philately

c FERABYHYEER

(BH)
° BES(EF)

o Assistant Postmaster

General (Postal)

e Director (Operations)

B

Postal Services

o BIFRE ¢
o BRI
o BIFIRE
R IE S
o AEIRE
o BIEXIE
* BERS

e International Mail
* Mail Processing

e Mail Distribution

* Retail Business

e Productivity Services
e Operations Support
o Customer Service

o fBEL(BF )
* Director (Finance)

B35

Financial Services

cBREE
BB - A
B RBEIEME
 BEBHRS

< EER

« BT

o DRI

o Cash Management

o Stamp Supply, Revenue
Accounts and PO Box

e International Mail
Accounts

« Financial Management
« Financial Analysis
o Supplies

* MEL(HIINET)

e Director (External
Affairs)

HIER

External Affairs

o BIFR %75
o RIRE
o BN

e International Business
¢ Terminal Dues

¢ International Logistics

EBBHER 2016/17 7



ab 7 1k 3

Corporate Overview




a " L o |

K:«Tf'ff'

1Ppstal Stotion
 z7 aElig




3B P9 1gK 5

Corporate Overview

BBRE

BB BB AMFES - WREBMBR
BRRE - 20161176 E - BEBRNEZBRANE
BRI B 248 .8 1B TTAN47 28188 T » $4151.5318
BTLEERM  DWESETEEETIDFENLT% °

L'ON

Revenue (#%&E7t HK$milion)

4% TOTAL 4,881

4711
170

m —REERRTS

2T ON

BHE

£2016/17FE » EABBARIE12 2B 48
(FR¥H3358 M) -

B4E

Mail Volume (B#&# milion items)

General Mail Services

Miscellaneous Revenue

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Hongkong Post continued with sustained efforts in cost management
and business development in order to reinforce financial performance. In
2016/17, the total operating revenue and expenditure of HKP were $4,881
million and $4,728 million respectively, resulting in an operating profit of
$153 million. The rate of return on the average net fixed assets was 4.7%.

EIER A
Operating Costs (&% &t HK$milion)

%8 TOTAL 4,728

1,652

360

m EBIERAE
Staff Costs

u —REBEER T

General Mail Operating Expenses

B {THFIX

Administration Expenses

MAIL TRAFFIC

In 2016/17, Hongkong Post processed 1.22 billion mail items (or a
daily average of 3.35 million items).

1,400 1,362
1,234 1,224
1200 1,212 1,197
1,000
800
600
400
200
1 3 3 0 5 W AR E
0 Local Mail
12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 [ Year - EEREE
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Local Mail Traffic
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Local mail accounted for 86.5% of Hongkong Post’s total mail traffic in 2016/17.

EE-1GS
million 1,139
ftems 1,037 1,038 1,058 1,059
1000
800 =%
Letter Mail
600 W R B IE
Local CourierPost
u EEBBGER
400 5 AR
Hongkong Post
200 Circular Service
WOESREM
Registered Mail
0 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 FEYear - %rﬁ%rs
BIfREH 2 FEFIHE M
International Mail Traffic Major Overseas Destinations
2016/ 7EE - B E 4B EBHAIHE13.5% °
International mail accounted for 13.5% of Hongkong
3.9%

Post’s total mail traffic in 2016/17.

CE

South America

17.6%

AEs AL seiM

mllllon North America
items
250

200

223
198
175 165
0 139 = 50.7%
Air Mail THREAE
101 o RPE Asia & Asia-Pacific
Surface Mail
u SREIR
5 Speedpost 2 7 . 1 %
Europe

12/13  13/14 14/15  15/16 16/17  F/EYear

o

o

o

EITE 33 RETAIL BUSINESS
HE2017F3A318  EEBHBELRE125H As at 31 March 2017, Hongkong Post operated an extensive network of
HBRE (REZERDERF)  BEHEERM - 125 post offices (including three mobile post offices).
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Sustaining Hongkong Post’s Competitive Advantages
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NEW PRODUCT AND SERVICE INITIATIVES

Service Excellence
We are committed to striving for service excellence, and to this end we
are pursuing the following initiatives:

New Mail Tracking Function and Extension of
Acceptance Offices for EC-Ship Posting

0n 30 June 2016, Hongkong Post enhanced the quality and scope of its
EC-Ship service. EC-Ship users can now obtain the latest status of their
mail items once they have completed the preparation process on the
EC-Ship platform. The network was also extended with the addition of
afurther six post offices on 19 September 2016, with altogether 51 post
offices that now accept EC-Ship posting. We are planning to extend the
EC-Ship Application Programming Interface (API) service to support
all bulk mail services in the EC-Ship platform by October 2017, and to
support local registered mails in early 2018.

Extension of e-Express Service

In response to demand from e-Commerce merchants for new ways of
sending goods to popular destinations as well as emerging markets,
our e-Express service was extended to cover Brazil, the Netherlands,
Switzerland, Sweden, Denmark, Israeland Japan on 14 November 2016,
covering 19 major destinations in the year. We will continue to explore
new destinations to help make this service a strong alternative shipping

solution in addition to the conventional registration service.
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1218 R and the Air Parcel Service

FN - BFREEXPAZAUATZERILER - Speedpost customers were able to enjoy a number of new value-
added services during the year:

° BEEREPMN201659 AR EM HinEeE R
¢ online redemption of gifts for registered customers in September

o [RHFREE] @ - TAnEAREXREMN2016 2016;
FIOAKRARE  AERERTBHANFRER
BPUEMLEBZIRTRE UK * the introduction of an Application Programming Interface (API)

function in the “MySpeedpost” online platform in October 2016,
s BEMBEAMERIBHSEMER [MEel] &£
2016F1 AIER L - [BHel® | BANKRT
FREEBHTEREIEME  FHABEER
[REOBREE] % [R5 5] BLFAERE * the introduction of an “Internet + Mail clearance e-Pass”, which
BEHER  BFREEAETEEBHMNERER
W WAER LSRN BHORK - FR - BEE
MERGREED EREZH e RRY -

helping those of our Speedpost customers who make bulk postings
to conveniently prepare the posting forms online; and

was jointly developed by Guangzhou Customs and Guangdong
Post, and launched in January 2016. This e-Pass is available for
Speedpost items sent to major areas of Guangdong Province

e R EENN I EFRE that are prepared on the “MySpeedpost” and “EC-Ship” online
. . . latforms. The e-Pass enables consignees to check the customs
2016497 - HEMBEBBEADEARAGY P &

b HER S AR R 2o P RRE - L clearance status of their postal items and arrange tariff payments
Hﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁg%ﬁﬁﬁ S 5% © 2016 online for postal items. This customs facilitation measure was also
F108  RPABERTEIEMFENRIIR 455 extended to the Air Parcel service in the year.

]| F5 - HERAEEE \ MR o
Bl RIRA EEBRORBRERTR Continued Enhancements to Online Customer

Interfaces via Mobile Devices

In September 2016, we enriched the functionalities of our mobile

app to make it easier for customers to order at-door pick-ups for their

Speedpost postings, instead of calling the Speedpost pick-up hotline.

il In October 2016, we provided online shoppers with convenient mobile

E‘:":_"."'.L‘..”:"..":.':‘.:.- f______ accesstothe Sh.opThruPost platfo.rm, thereby enhancing our services
i : ‘ as well as boosting the corporate image of Hongkong Post.

A more convenient way to
arrange pick-up

via mobile APP

pick-up Podl APP o
Ty Speodptet N nced' o b p g ofce

+
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Sustaining Hongkong Post’s Competitive Advantages
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Service Innovations

Some highlights of our service innovations designed to meet the
changing market and dynamic customer needs in 2016/17 are as
follows:

Launch of Mail Collection Number and iPostal
Stations

In May 2016, Hongkong Post introduced a new mail collection service
using a Mail Collection Number (MCN), and installed a network of
iPostal Stations throughout the territory to enable self-service mail
collection. The service requires members of the public first to carry out
a simple registration procedure on the Hongkong Post EC-Ship portal
to obtain a Mail Collection Number (MCN). Once they have registered
an MCN, members of the public can then select a post office and/or an
iPostal Station to receive their larger sized mail items, which normally
would be delivered to the door.

In October 2016, we launched a new model of iPostal Station that
incorporates Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) technology,
developed in association with the Hong Kong R&D Centre for Logistics
and Supply Chain Management Enabling Technologies (LSCM R&D
Centre), to enhance the operational flow of the system. The RFID-
equipped model won a Gold Medal at the 45th International Exhibition
of Inventions — Geneva held in March and April 2017, awarded for the
categories of "Computer Science, Software, Electronics, Electricity,
Methods of Communication”.

As at 31 March 2017, iPostal Stations had been set up at 12 service
points throughout Hong Kong. We aim to extend these iPostal Stations
to more locations in the future.

DIPICONE
Copmnzms
Bt isre TN

CHEMEWT

WESEHAEER B! £ [F45EHNRBEIREAR ]
TREEE-

The RFID-equipped iPostal Station won a Gold Medal at the 45th
International Exhibition of Inventions - Geneva.
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New "Postage Paid by Addressee” Feature of Smart
Post

In July 2016, we introduced a new "postage paid by addressee” option
to our range of local mail services. This new service allows addressees
to pay postage for the mail they receive when they collect it from a post
office. Currently, the service is provided to government departments and
statutory bodies that send documents to members of the public who
request or apply for certain documents.

Fulfilment Services

In September 2016, Hongkong Post launched a new Fulfilment Service
that offers SMEs and merchants a total solution in fulfilling their orders.
Merchants can conveniently place their fulfilment orders online at our EC-
Ship online portal.

Introduction of "e-signature” at Post Offices

An “e-signature” function for customers collecting registered mail and
other items that require proof of delivery was rolled out to post office
counters in November and December 2016. Capturing the signatures
of recipients electronically speeds up the processing time for mail
counter delivery. This e-signature function will also be included in the
new generation of Personal Digital Assistants to be used by our delivery
postmenin early 2018.

New Technologies applied to Direct Mail

In light of the growing popularity of mobile and virtual visualisation
technologies, Hongkong Post has introduced the application of
"augmented reality"and "virtual reality" technology to Direct Mail (DM) so
thatreaders can use mobile applications toview 3Dimages on print copies
of DM. Scents infused into print copies also have the potential to help
target customers associate DM messages with pleasant experiences. In
January 2017, we organised an educational seminar during which invited
industry experts demonstrated the power of augmented reality, virtual
reality and scent printing to a fascinated audience.

EBBHRER 2016/17 15



RIEEBBHRNREER

Sustaining Hongkong Post’s Competitive Advantages
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Service Management

We continue to strive to serve our customers better, and are investing
in information technology to achieve better levels of service
management.

Mail Bag Tracking Service for Bulk Air Mail

In May 2016, we began offering a new and optional value-added
service, the “Mail Bag Tracking Service”, for Bulk Air Mail (BAM). The
service fee provides two useful pieces of tracking information at a bag
level: the “date of posting” and the “date of departure”.

Enhanced Function of Mechanised Letter Sorting
System

In November 2016, the Letter Sorting Machines in the Mechanised
Letter Sorting System had a Chinese Optical Character Recognition
function added, enabling the sorting of letters bearing printed Chinese
local addresses.

Introduction of the Mail Flow Management and
Tracking System (MTS)

The MTS was commissioned in November 2016 to replace the long-
standing Trackand Trace System,and enhance the functionalities for mail
tracking in phases. Together with the Integrated Postal Services System
(IPSS), which was introduced in 2015 to automate counter operations,
the MTS is enabling instant data exchange in ways that are optimising
our planning and deployment of manpower and other resources.

“Drop & Go” Provides Customers with A Convenient
Service

In January 2017, Hongkong Post launched its new "Drop & Go" (DnG)
service, designed both to cater for developments in e-Commerce and
enhance the posting experience of our customers. The service name
is self-explanatory: “Drop & Go” gives customers the convenience of
handing in their mail for posting in bulk at our counter offices, without
the need to wait during the acceptance process.
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MAJOR COLLABORATIONS

Hongkong Post has developed several strategic partnerships aiming at
further enhancing its competitive advantages.

Launch of "Hong Kong Trusted Product”

A product line of "Hong Kong Trusted Product"”, authenticated by GS1
Hong Kong, have been available on our online shopping platform
ShopThruPost since August 2016. Merchants selling products with
"Hong Kong Trusted Product” status do not only enjoy enhanced
product authenticity from GS1 Hong Kong, but also trusted delivery
through the proven reliability of Hongkong Post, and thus benefit from
"Double Trust in e-Commerce". In October 2016, we launched a mobile
application and a new web version of ShopThruPost. We also joined
the GS1 Hong Kong Summit 2016 held in November 2016, where we
shared some of the ways in which our postal services are supporting
e-Commerce.

Collaboration with Large e-Commerce
Platform Providers

To provide a better service to e-Commerce platform providers, we
have been working closely with large online sales platform providers
to develop dedicated solutions for shipping their items overseas.
These solutions include integrating computer systems to facilitate
data uploading and the exchange of tracking information, as well as
developing a dedicated workflow that is streamlined and efficient. This
initiative has proved to be successful, and traffic generated through this
channelis ontheincrease.
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Hongkong Post (HKP) launched its network of iPostal Stations, installing iPostal 1 Plastiit $tertin e

M m =] ¥ K
Stations at Tiu Keng Leng Sports Centre, Tuen Mun Public Library, Tin Shui Wai : d g ':’ fﬁ.'f
Sports Ground, Youth Square, Domain, and the Central Mail Centre. 3 F .@

A S —

BABBERTED N ELXEFHERE [2016FF/ MEERERER] -

HKP received the "2016 Best SME's Partner Award" from The Hong Kong General
Chamber of Small and Medium Business.

FIEREBERILEOTELRIES (REGHRAR) EPEATERN
HRER -

All the entries in the 15th Inter-School Stamp Exhibits Competition, including the
winning entries, went on display at an exhibition held in the Sha Tin Town Hall.

RXF[FHEEE  FEBBN2016F8H29A Z0AREEBRAR RIS HTE
BEEHSFIN [BEKRAREN] HORBHEEE - HEBEH I BERS
MAMBEEBRAAREE EEARKEFENTTEM @ WREDEVERTY -

As part of our support for social enterprises, HKP provided avenue at the General Post
Office from 29 August to 3 September 2016 where the YMCA of Hong Kong set up its
Y Multi Pop Up Store. The store, jointly run by ethnic minorities and local grassroots

women, sold handmade ethnic products and provided a henna drawing service.
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HKP launched new Fulfilment Services to help local merchants fulfil their sales orders,
whether placed online or offline, with minimal hassle.

MENERME [RFH] RENERS : RAERR - TIVEBRE - fIREBHE RAEERF - AEA
BRBEMEZSLERS -

Further six post offices were added to the list of post offices

accepting EC-Ship items. They are Tung Chung Post Office, To Kwa f/'l:'_'e---r °
Wan Post Office, Sun Chui Post Office, Lei Muk Shue Post Office, Shek 2 ag @'S h I p
Wai Kok Post Office and Tsz Wan Shan Post Office.

FRBBRFREERE (KE—B) [F/EREZEHBH2016—BEREER
Bl #Ee

HKP's Speedpost service won "The Best SME Partners 2016 — International Courier

Service" award, organised by the Economic Digest.

[HEFEBB] R2016F10A7HRTT  EESERHEEIFEREE([E  SAHA

2R BATRERY) - EABKE SEEE S FRMERED - -(j} > (s
“Love Post Day” was held on 7 October 2016, the 13th consecutive year in which HKP \J ﬁ
has organised the event. “Love Post Day” is aimed at bringing a human touch back into ‘N" Pt "ﬁ
personal communication by encouraging the act of letter-writing. g : b
BEBREASABMNAEE  RILEPERFT L - REKREBEEMNEFHR :
BB RAEB GTHEHR BT (RFID) &Y [ &L - : : oy,
: : - : : ) 1Pasint 51 a
iPostal Stations with RFID technology were added in the following locations:  *  >"mEe = |\, *=
Sha Tin Government Offices, Choi Hung Road Badminton Centre, Po Wing . : 9 ‘ :
Road Sports Centre, and Wan Chai Post Office. : s
[SmE ] #H [BEELER] - R AN 10
“Hong Kong Trusted Product” was launched on ShopThruPost. o
. Hﬂ#ﬂ I
-: |
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In November and December, HKP introduced a new “e-signature”
collection arrangement at post offices that captured customer signatures
electronically.
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During the uyear, HKP's e-Express service was extended to include Brazil, the
Netherlands, Switzerland, Sweden, Denmark, Israel and Japan, bringing to 19
major destinations covered by the service.
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HKP brought its new Mail Flow Management and Tracking System (MTS) into service. The
new system offers enhanced functionalities for tracking mail items and mail despatches.

[HMBRE R OREBINEPOLEXFHENRE  ATESH I RDEF
SCARHHEAE S o

The Letter Sorting Machines in the Mechanised Letter Sorting System had a
Chinese Optical Character Recognition function added, enabling the sorting of
letters bearing printed Chinese local addresses.

BLOEhEEBRE T MNERBEK 2RSHAEHSHELENTEE - 2FE2016F 1A%
BEABAAZRERIEHETIRYE - AREHRERBPLRABELEBHE -

The PostCare Club, set up for HKP staff and their family members, took part in a number of activities
to show their care for the less privileged in the community, including providing a volunteer service for
the Duchess of Kent Children’ s Hospital in November 2016 and running free regular tutorial classes for PostCare Club
children at the Caritas Centre.
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7] :
A cachet was issued to commemorate HKP's participation in the China 2016 Asian & E;;'-'Eglé §
International Stamp Exhibition, held at the Nanning International Convention and Exhibition e GEhimITIon :
Centre in Nanning, Guangxi from 2 to 6 December.

RERBEEHEBRNNFIEERSERIELE  BABRERERANA
WELFEERELE -LEER R [BRIFEFEHABWERNER - fE
FEBMAANE RERESGREE @ (FENIEZSEMCEAZRE? ] -

HKP and the Education Bureau co-organised a letter-writing competition for
young people in Hong Kong in support of the Universal Postal Union (UPU) 46th
International Letter-Writing Competition. The topic was "Imagine you are an advisor
to the new UN Secretary-General; which world issue would you help him tackle first
and how would you advise him to solve it?"

R EB SRR EE IR R B
B [EEuL] -

BRBREREE Mm%
ES [BAOBE] -

HKP was recognised as a
“Consumer Caring Company”
by GS1 Hong Kong.

A RFID iPostal Station was opened
in the On Kay Commercial Centre.

BEMPE (BHE) BT [2016XSHBESER| - URBFEBEIN2016FHE
T—BUSEHRRRFESRENRE - SES8%M KA X R 16 RAXIE B ek
ARHR

HKP won the 2016 32 5B 2 % & 5% award, organised by the CAINIAO Alliance. The award
recognises the outstanding achievement of HKP in attaining 88% on-time delivery for Russia
within 15 days during the Double-Eleven period of 2016.

[BABBZR] REABRRIMNELE  KERETEEER  A2BNERIEEN AR bl | ]
B BRI © .

Members of the Friends of HKP, a volunteer scheme organised by HKP, acted as docents for guided
tours and school visits to HKP facilities.

EBHKRER 2016/17 21



FRERBH DR

The Year in Pictures

BERER BN EREDETRERS -

The Tseung Kwan O Post Office and the Tseung Kwan O Delivery Office

were relocated to the Ming Tak Shopping Centre.

EEEBBEREREFTHUIEERE [FELFEMME2017]
— [FHRERERE @S] 28 BE T FERILE -

HKP’s Speedpost won the Metro Finance
FM104 - "Hong Kong Leaders' Choice 2017
- Excellent Brand of Commercial Express
Delivery Service" award for the tenth time
inarow.

BEBRERETBREEBRERNKREARNERE -

HKP won a Certificate of Merit in the Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence — Public Services Sector.

FEBRERRERE [RETH] BFAE - 817 [(NEHLEKERKTE] - £FF

B IEERT AR -

BRBBER BT & RIGH SR FHEM2016/17
FE [RLRBE] 5% -

HKP received the Hong

Kong Council of Social

Service's Award of the L.,
Caring  Organisation
Logo 2016/17.

HKP joined hands with environmental group Greeners Actions to organise a Laisee Packets ¥ *ﬁij@

Reuse and Recycling Programme. Reborn laisee packets were distributed at all our post

offices.

ZERTEEFAREESEBRI M [FHus] -

A RFID iPostal Station was opened in the Tsuen Wan Government Offices.
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Speedpost attained the Gold Level of Universal Postal Union EMS
Cooperative Certification in 2016.

EREBRERREERE [2016REXBEMH] 8IE -

HKP received the “2016 Business Partner Award”, organised by Cathay Pacific Cargo.

EARBBREEATEEBETMERARAREMA [2016&E hkMBULEE] F
R [ SIEnREE—RAEPIERIRE] M [KEE hki@uesE] -

HKP’s website was awarded the Silver prize and “The Most Liked .hk Award” under
the Government Departments Category in the “Best .hk Website Awards 2016"
organised by Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited.

BOgM [BEBRzA] WREIMENEAMIERERSE -

Members of the PostCare Club and Friends of Hongkong Post visited the elderly in
the Chuk Yuen and Wong Tai Sin areas.

EEBEAREEARMRN [2016/17FETEBNREELIEBHAEH R
PHERE= -

HKP ranked second in the Hong Kong Government Service Excellence Index 2016/17,
organised by the Efficiency Unit.

= CATHAY PACIFIC CARGD

2016 Top Agents Award Dinn

e P oo

EBEHHER 2016/17 23



Hongkong Post strives
to serve you better







MRER*

Engaging Our Customers

BEERERE

EEBHTHETEREREIREAS - £2016/174F
B BRYBSHBREHEEREREAIT.8% -
97.7%MBE M EBMRT & 98.6%MBE M EIRE
BR# - LA K 94.8%HIEE R i B BVAR IR A o

BEEEHN/ A

ERBBE R TREE ME - BB BARSSH# AHE
2F  BRRBEEBPRABE S RN S HETY
o NREEENBEEER - BE/ENKER
EEZFEAE  AHIBmekd/  ERelx ik
FEP - fHATMARAL -

RESTTHERN2BEREBHNZERE - 1
REABPINERNRBERAZT T REAANER
M3 °

RNEEBEHES

FEEBBRESRUARNERTE  BEEH
BAR/MEEREEMOTISIERNBEER - B8
ISR B FHES - BABE AT/ NMEEREL
EEGERIURBEGNER - XEMEBETEER
A RUEH BB ERANERASRE - YEZE
R HEMBABIIAE  BReENERNTE
MEB LR/ NEEMROTEY » 5 HAITHEF
HENTRAZSGRRHUEEXER - YAMMN AR
RRSEAT NIRRT EEMELNS
A - BE2017F3A3ME - FNEEBBR
EEHH45 0008 EE -

26 Hongkong Post Annual Report 2016/17

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY

In 2016/17, the overall level of customer satisfaction with Hongkong
Post’s services, as reflected in our regular customer satisfaction
survey, reached 97.8%. The satisfaction levels achieved were: 97.7%
for our counter service, 98.6% for our delivery service, and 94.8% for
our hotline service.

CUSTOMER LIAISON GROUPS

Hongkong Post gains valuable customer feedback through its different
liaison groups, which include our Customer Liaison Group, Business
Customer Liaison Group and Philately Liaison Group. These groups
are made up of representatives from District Councils, major local
chambers of commerce and SME associations, account customers,
philatelists and members of the public.

We were able to gain many useful comments and suggestions for
improving our products and services by organising regular meetings
and visits to Hongkong Post’s operational facilities.

POSTALPLUS FOR SME

PostalPlus for SME is a very effective communication platform that
provides SMEs with up-to-date market and business information,
thus giving them an extra edge to their competitiveness. Members of
PostalPlus for SME enjoy a dedicated member hotline and website,
regular e-newsletters with the latest postal service updates and
practical business tips, and free topical seminars and customised
workshops organised in collaboration with various SME associations
and government departments. They also receive specialist advice
on e-Commerce solutions, and on the various government funding
schemes available that support local SMEs in developing their 020
business. As at 31 March 2017, PostalPlus for SME had approximately
45000 members.
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Promoting Public Education
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From February to July 2017, Hongkong Post organised a roving
exhibition titled "Learn More about Hongkong Post", held at different
community halls across Hong Kong. The exhibition included various
educational topics such as details regarding the correct way to
address mail items, and information about the new mail format
classifications for postage implemented on 1 January 2016. It also
introduced various new Hongkong Post initiatives, such as the new
iPostal Station and Mail Collection Number (MCN) services.

An online Correct Addressing tool was launched on the Hongkong
Post website and the Hongkong Post Mobile App. The tool enables
members of the public to check the correct presentation of local
mailing addresses, thus facilitating prompt and accurate mail delivery.
The tool also enables users to print local addresses on envelopes and
labels directly, and to store the addresses on their mobile devices.
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As at 31 March 2017, 5 171 civil servants and 1 875 non-civil service
contract staff were serving in Hongkong Post.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

To uphold our service excellence and maintain a team that is readily
responsive to market changes, we provide our workforce with training
in essential professional knowledge and required competencies to
enable them to respond swiftly and effectively to the evolving service
environment. Over the past year, our staff received a total of 38 853
days of training.

The Hongkong Post Staff Training Centre organises vocational training
for staffin many different areas. In 2016/17, courses included:

* aManagement Development Programme for our managers; and

* arange of courses on product knowledge and systems' operation,
occupational safety and health, and customer service skills, for our
staff.

We continued to organise seminars and workshops on such topics as:

* integrity management, staff management, procurement, contract
management and financial management;

* supervisory accountability, in talks and seminars jointly organised
with the Independent Commission Against Corruption;

* a Customer Journey Workshop, held in September 2016, for
managers; and

* emotional health,inan Emotional Wellness Workshop for managers
and frontline supervisors held in February 2017.

In the first half of 2017, we collaborated with the Civil Service Training
and Development Institute (CSTDI) to revamp the training courses we
provided to our frontline supervisors. In addition, we conducted
a range of tailor-made training courses on performance
appraisal together with supervisory accountability and integrity
management, sensitivity to issues and crisis management, and
activity-based leadership training.
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We attach great importance to sustaining a learning culture, and have
continued to encourage and support our staff in self-learning and part-
time learning, for example by:

* organising evening English, Putonghua and computer courses; and

* encouraging staff members to apply for a place in the training
sponsorship scheme.

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH

At Hongkong Post, we strive to maintain a safe and healthy working
environment in line with our Occupational Safety and Health Policy
and our Safety Management System. We regularly organise training
in occupational safety and health matters for our frontline staff and
managers. We also conduct regular safety audits at our operational
and headquarter units, to ensure that they comply with all regulatory
requirements as well as with our own Safety Management System.
The committed effort by the entire workforce resulted in a decrease in
employee injuries, from 195 cases in 2015 to 167 cases in 2016.
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POST OFFICE RECREATION CLUB (PORC)

The PORC organises a variety of sport and recreational activities for the
staff of Hongkong Post and their families. In 2016/17, these activities
included special interest classes, local tours and sports competitions.
They were all received enthusiastically by staff, and fostered a good
team spiritamong our workforce.

The site of our PORC Clubhouse at Caroline Hill will shortly be returned
to the Government. On 26 February 2017, a series of farewell events
were held at the Clubhouse, including a tug of war and a “Big Bowl
Feast”. The 500 participants took the opportunity to bid farewell to
the Clubhouse and express their gratitude for having such a wonderful
place to make and share departmental memories. The Clubhouse,
which has served the staff of Hongkong Post for nearly 80 years, was
officially closed down in March 2017.

RECOGNITION OF OUTSTANDING STAFF

Hongkong Post continues to excel in customer service. In 2016/17,
the following staff received special recognitions for their outstanding
contributions in customer service:

* Senior Postman Mr. LAU Che-ping’s outstanding performance
earned him the Individual Award (Field & Special Service) — Bronze
Award in the Customer Service Excellence Award 2016, organised
by the Hong Kong Association for Customer Service Excellence;

* Mr. TAM Man-chau, Postmaster of Tsim Sha Tsui Post Office, won
“The 48th Distinguished Salesperson Award”, organised by The
Hong Kong Management Association; and

* during the year, around 1 100
commendations have been
received from the public and
the customers in recognition
of the quality service provided
by some 7 000 Hongkong Post
staff members.
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

Hongkong Post takes every opportunity to advocate environmental
protection and sustainable development. We are committed to
operating our postal business in an environmentally responsible

manner.

INITIATIVES AND ACHIEVEMENTS FOR
THE ENVIRONMENT IN 2016/17

In 2016/17, the Air Mail Centre continued to take part in Hong Kong
International Airport’s Carbon Reduction Programme. Energy-saving
measuresimplemented at the Air Mail Centre helped lower greenhouse
gas emissions from the Centre in 2016 by 10% compared with those
recorded in 2015. We also participated in the Energy Audit and Carbon
Audit organised by the Environmental Protection Department (EPD)
and the Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund (EMSTF),
which was conducted at the Central Mail Centre in 2016.

Most of Hongkong Post’s procurement practices follow the green
specifications promulgated by the EPD. In 2016, the value of our
purchases with green specifications from the EPD’s green procurement
list accounted for 97.4 % of our total expenditure on products on the

green procurement list, compared to 97% in 2015.

In2016/17,around 415.5 tonnes of wooden pallets used by bulk mailers
for postings were collected from the Central Mail Centre for recycling.
During the year, recycled paper made up 28% of our total paper
consumption. Interms of food recycling, around 558.5 kg of food waste
was collected from the staff canteens in the Central Mail Centre and the
Air Mail Centre and converted to organic fertiliser.

As at 31 March 2017, Hongkong Post’s postal vehicle fleet consisted
of 171 environmentally-friendly vehicles, including eight fully electric
vehicles, and 106 vehicles complying with Euro V/VI emission

standards. Bicycles are used in some rural areas for mail delivery.
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Environmentally-friendly paper is used for Hongkong Post’s philatelic
products, including first day covers and souvenir covers. The stamp
paper, made with recyclable pulp approved by the Forest Stewardship
Council, is manufactured by an ISO 14001 certified company.

As at 31 March 2017, over 19 000 local standing order customers and
1 200 overseas mail order customers had registered to make stamp
purchases via our online ordering platform, Stamp OnNet.

In 2016/17,Hongkong Post participated in the following campaigns and
events aimed at protecting our environment:

* “Hong Kong No Air-Con Night”, organised by Green Sense;

* “Woodland Conservation Day 2016", organised by Friends of the
Earth (HK);

* “No Car Day 2016", organised by Friends of the Earth (HK);

e “Green Day 2016", organised by the Community Chest of Hong
Kong; and

e “Earth Hour 2017", organised by the World Wide Fund for Nature.

Environmental protection issues are frequently covered in staff
briefings. In addition, we seek to raise green awareness and promote
green practices in our daily operations through articles published in our
staff newsletters.
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PREPARING YOUNG PEOPLE FOR THE
WORKPLACE

Hongkong Post takes partin anumber of programmes designed to help
young people make a smooth transition from schools or universities
into the workplace. During the year, these included:

* the Post-Secondary Student Summer Internship Programme 2016,
in which 14 students took part;

e the Social Welfare Department’s Sunnyway Programme. Two young
people successfully completed their training under the programme
at Hongkong Post;

* the "Life Buddies" Mentoring Scheme - Job Tasting Programme,
held in July 2016 and organised by The Commission on Poverty,
which promotes a mentoring culture in the community with the aim
of helping young people move up in society; and

¢ Job Shadow Day, held in March 2017 under the Job Shadowing
Programme organised by Junior Achievement Hong Kong, and
benefitting 15 secondary students.

e )

Pﬂstaf Gallery 1""‘1.,..--"’

OTHER CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

During the year, Hongkong Post staff took partinanumber of charitable
activities organised by external bodies. These included the “Corporate
and Employee Contribution Programme” and “Love Teeth Day”, both
organised by The Community Chest of Hong Kong. We also supported
other charitable organisations by advertising and promoting their
activities throughout Hongkong Post.
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Promoting Stamps and Philately

BEBAMEZ DIVERSIFIED STAMP THEMES

2016175 E - ERBREITN\ERIBE - =% Hongkong Post issued eight sets of special stamps, three stamp

BR/NBIRM—K [DBLOEBR] /MRE °;\*BETEI sheetlets and a Heartwarming Stamps mini-pane in 2016/17. These
ERTEBNSERS « BABANPBEEM L -

- . stamp issues embraced themes relating to different facets of Hong
AR, —LE B BT O REAM ©

Kong and the riches of Chinese arts and culture, along with some
themes of international interest.

R °
» B - PRABAEHOREFRI—EE - BEBRBT-ENRREBE - NERIEHN

TEFIRG S - RS [T [100] NAOFEEMEBER - ALBREEAEF

To honour the centenary of the Hong Kong St. John Ambulance Brigade, Hongkong Post
issued a set of four commemorative stamps introducing the Brigade's work and the services
it provides. The number “100” was printed on the background of the stamps iniridescentink

to highlight the centenary of the Brigade.
i o

[PEEFEERIFEDN : KEF | BRPMURRTIAEIELSTHNERRE - e

20165F5A10H 1T Issued on 10 May, 2016 |

The stamp sheetlet “World Heritage in China Series No. 5: The Grand Canal” featured a picturesque
view of the Grand Canal in a winter snow scene.

oy °
» [HEA | —E-MEBRERTA1940E1960FREUERNFEHITA B R R
MREERERS

20165£6A8A 1T Issued on 8 June, 2016

The set of six stamps on “Toys of Hong Kong” featured six classic toys produced from the 1940s
to the 1960s. The stamps were printed with a lacquered gloss effect for a nostalgic touch.

20165E7H6H®E ST Issued on 6 July, 2016 € 7
(2016 H57EEEHERMITE | BE/\AENAERTE  MEFBEER—EHE L5 e ay A

FEI AR 20104 BIFR B2 BLARIT 52 L B RO 2 ()8 -

The “57th International Mathematical Olympiad 2016” stamp sheetlet illustrated Ceva’s Theorem,
while the circular stamp showed a geometric problem formulated in Hong Kong which was adopted
as one of the questions in the 2010 International Mathematical Olympiad.
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o 20165858 1T Issued on 5 August, 2016

® [2016F BHNANERIIERNCREPE | —ENRBRLIFTEELELRERAR
BREERE -

The set of four stamps on “Games of the XXXI Olympiad Rio 2016” commemorated the
participation of Hong Kong, China in this major international sporting event.

20165F986H T Issued on 6 September, 2016 ¢

EmEd] BEBERREERCRNEMBUSSRE - —ENKBENBE/AIE . A2 g S—

R EMMEERED[EREIERE -

The special stamps “A Tribute to Teachers” paid tribute to teachers everywhere for the love and devotion
they show to their students. Depicting chalk drawings on a blackboard, this set of four stamps and a stamp

sheetlet conveyed five different tribute messages to teachers.

lﬂ@ > 20165F10813H % T Issued on 13 October, 2016

1

WLy 9 [EBTILERSE—%] UERTOABHABLEBRCAEE N2 RRRBELEE12
BRERBUH S - WMER T BEE 2B f A LB e AL S o

= The first issue of the Hong Kong Hiking Trails Series featured the 70-kilometre Lantau Trail on

“.. :-._;;-:' ‘m Lantau Island. The souvenir sheet showcased some of the extraordinary scenery from all 12
Pl é =3 sections of the Lantau Trail, supplemented by an outline map of Lantau Island incorporating a
S kﬂ route map of the Lantau Trail.

@

2016¥11A12H%1T Issued on 12 November, 2016

4

RIS FEFILEE (1866 -1925) A—BRTAF - BBEBEEL—EN [FPILRE—F Nl
E+EF] RENLAEERE - GEBRELUAE N XHERTLEENHEE  BRRALSERTE
REEREE THRY - BEMNEFEZERN -

To mark the 150th anniversary of the birth of Dr. SUN Yat-sen (1866 - 1925), Hongkong Post issued
a set of commemorative stamps on the theme of “The 150th Anniversary of the Birth of Dr. SUN
Yat-sen”. The stamp set, showing images of Dr. SUN in an oil painting style, reflected important
events in Dr. SUN’s life by depicting his connections with Hong Kong at different periods of his life.

> 2016F12H6H% 1T Issued on 6 December, 2016

> [BBEERERE | ZIFMOBRBIHRIA DIMARREER] A8 RRCRILAE 198041990
FRAGENIERMIER - BHIERE /B BEMEOR R ©

BT, I ; E I | Wl With “Pencil Drawings by Mr. KONG Kai-ming” asits theme, the fourth set of special stamps inthe “Hong
e | [ Kong Museums Collection” series showcased seven pencil drawings by Mr. KONG from the 1980s and

1990s, all from the collection of the Hong Kong Museum of Art.
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Promoting Stamps and Philately

'UZ b 2016128218 % 1T Issued on 21 December, 2016
®

L2l 0 | (REESEHEERORNE01REARBERNESHRA] — [VRLEBE] NMREE
S BB SR EEEROBAE0165 5 ALE R -

The “Congratulations on the Outstanding Achievements of Hong Kong Paralympians in the Rio 2016
Paralympic Games — Heartwarming Stamps Mini-pane” commemorated the accomplishments of the
Hong Kong, China Delegation at the Rio 2016 Paralympic Games.

2017F1A7H%1T Issued on 7 January, 2017

REWHHEEHRE  SEBRELEVHEN [RTE (BHF) | BFR - SREBF/)EFEM
FARERSR/NRUGR o

The colourful “Year of the Rooster” stamps, along with a gold and silver stamp sheetlet and a silk
stamp sheetlet, celebrated the advent of the Lunar New Year.

2 LB 2017%2A16H%1T Issued on 16 February, 2017
) Chkstly 9 [rh Bt B KBS A5 BTSN | BB/ \RREeE T HiENEE HWNE -

— HTIEE -

m A K i S
] bn-un.'...

The stamp sheetlet “World Heritage in China Series No. 6: Kaiping Diaolou and Villages” depicted
the cluster of Diaolou towers on the farmlands of Zili Village, in Tangkou Town in Kaiping.

43 1 EN il 3k B SPECIAL PRINTING EFFECTS

FA - BMEBSBREATROENERIRER - # To add extra interest to our philatelic offerings, a range of special
BEIERERER - flan [+ A B SRBPR/EFR—BK printing effects were applied to some of the stamps released during
& | RE2XKFLSHMEBRDMK : [BB8 the year. For example, 22K gold-plated lace metal and silver hot foil
ST R R Em ] DR ER A M 2 hR B A ED
Bl o AN - [HRBIH FRIERE RFIES5 - FTEEEE
& ] BENBRM [FATILERIE % BE B : ) )
(@) B R AR EDRIRATEDA, - 37 & 512 the stamps ofthe. H?ng,’Kong MUSE.UmS Colléct|on— P.encn Dra\fvmgs
WKL+ 165 Bl 6004842 0 - by Mr. KONG Kai-ming”. Special lithographic techniques (using a
stochastic 12 micron screen) were employed for the printing of the

were applied to the “Gold and Silver Stamp Sheetlet on Lunar New
Year Animals — Monkey/Rooster”, while intaglio printing was used on

stamp sheetlet “World Heritage in China Series No. 6: Kaiping Diaolou
and Villages”, and were also used (with a screen of 600 lines per inch)
for the “Hong Kong Hiking Trails Series No. 1: Lantau Trail” stamps.
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STAMPS AS CUSTOMISED GIFTS

Hongkong Post provides a one-stop customised philatelic souvenir
service for both corporations and individuals. This service uses both
the special stamps issued by Hongkong Post as well as customised
Heartwarming Stamps. As the range of Heartwarming Stamps available

has expanded to cater for different occasions, demand for this service

has been ontherise.

PROMOTING PHILATELY

Hongkong Post organised a series of activities and initiativesin 2016/17
to cultivate publicinterest in stamp-collecting among different groups.
For example:

we co-organised philately-related workshops and activities with
various youth related associations, e.g. The Boys’ and Girls' Clubs
Association of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Girl Guides Association, and
the International Mathematical Olympiad Hong Kong Committee;

we jointly organised events with the Hong Kong Tourism Board to
promote philately in conjunction with hiking for nature lovers;

we collaborated with the Hong Kong Museum of Art to promote
philately in conjunction with pencil drawing;

customised stamp souvenirs were strategically introduced to local
colleges, encouraging the use of Heartwarming Stamps for events
and ceremonies such as graduation dinners or college/faculty
anniversaries;

we held the 15th Inter-School Stamp Exhibits Competition, co-
organised with the Education Bureavu;

we enriched the contents of our teaching kit promoting philately for
kindergarten and junior primary students; and

we co-organised philatelic workshops with local philatelic societies to
promote stamp-collecting in schools.

BBBBEFIR 2016/17
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Pursuing Global Postal Cooperation
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HongkongPosthas continuedto participate activelyintheinternational
postalarena, cooperating closelywithits postal counterparts worldwide
and looking for opportunities to advance its interests.

THE UNIVERSAL POSTAL UNION AND THE
ASIAN-PACIFIC POSTAL UNION

As a member of the China delegation, Hongkong Post took part during
the year in various initiatives and activities organised by the Universal
Postal Union (UPU). These included the 26th UPU Congress, various
UPU Postal Operations Council Meetings, and the UPU Council of
Administration Meetings. Hongkong Post is also an active player in the
Asian-Pacific Postal Union (APPU), a regional postal network operating
under the auspices of the UPU. During the year our representatives
attended the APPU Executive Council Meeting. These and other
interactions with our global counterparts were excellent opportunities
for us to exchange views on operational, economic and business
developments in international postal services. We also engaged in
ongoing dialogueswith our global postal partners on postal governance
issues and postal regulatory policies.

Hongkong Post has served as a governing board member of the Asia
Pacific Post (APP) Cooperative since its establishment. During the year,
we participated actively in the APP Cooperative Management Board
Meeting in an effort to promote greater regional co-operation among
postal administrations within the Asia-Pacific region. Hongkong Post
also served as Chairman of the APP ePacket Steering Committee,
which is dedicated to implementing the APP ePacket service and
refining its development. The APP ePacket service is an economical
shipping solution with tracking that supports e-Commerce trade in the
Asia-Pacific region.

In November 2016, Hongkong Post was invited by the Association
of Southeast Asian Nations (ASEAN) to deliver a presentation in
Yangon, Myanmar. It used the occasion to exchange views with the
ASEAN countries on postal operational issues, and to explore business
cooperation opportunities.
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In October 2016, Hongkong Post participated in the 26th
UPU Congress in Istanbul, Turkey, as part of the China
Delegation led by Mr. MA Junsheng, Director General of
the State Post Bureau (first row, second from right).

KAHALA POSTS GROUP

The Kahala Posts Group (KPG) is an alliance of postal administrations
which aims to raise the service performance of EMS and Air Parcel
services within the network. With Thailand Post joining in 2016,
KPG now comprises 10 major postal administrations covering the
Asia-Pacific, North American and European markets. KPG members
meet regularly to review service performance, explore new business
opportunities in response to changing customer needs, and
formulate business strategies for future development. In July 2016,
the Postmaster General attended the annual KPG CEO Meeting in
Seoul, South Korea, where the topics discussed included new market
trends and new strategies for meeting the demands arising from

e-Commerce.

2016 KPG CEO Board Meeting

'ER TO DELIVER

201697 A27 B 2178 R B
AREMERNEGKE -
Participants atthe KPG CEO meeting,
held on 27 July 2016.
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Looking Forward
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To ensure Hongkong Post’s long-term sustainability, in the year ahead

we will continue to engage in projects aimed at raising operational

excellence, enhancing customer experience, providing innovative

services, and meeting our future accommodation needs.

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE THROUGH IT
AND SERVICE INNOVATION

We will make more extensive use of Global Positioning System (GPS)
technology in our postal and hired vehicle fleet, to further enhance
our operational efficiency;

a new Mail Redelivery service has been put on trial from 1 April 2017.
The service enables recipients of inward EMS and inward/local
parcels to request redelivery of items for which delivery failed at the
first attempt, for a fee;

we will introduce an affordable, moderate speed delivery service
with a user-friendly online interface, “Speedpost Economy”, which
will accept items up to a weight limit of 30kg and will provide a rapid
delivery service for heavy items; and

we will further enhance the Mail Collection Number (MCN) services
to simplify the requirements for addressing by removing the need to
provide the local address physically affixed on mail items. In addition,
we will collaborate with popular online marketplaces and encourage
them to include iPostal Stations as collection points, so that
e-shoppers can select an iPostal Station to collect their merchandise
without having to register foran MCN.

ENHANCED CUSTOMER CONVENIENCE

We will revamp the ShopThruPost platform to enable better
interaction between merchants and e-shoppers;

we will explore collaborations with Mainland e-marketplaces for cross-
listing on their e-marketplaces to promote the “Hong Kong Trusted
Product” status of ShopThruPost to Mainland e-shoppers; and

we will setup an online platformin 2018 for e-Applications for the Post
Office Box service, which will also enable e-notifications to be sent to
customers regarding mail items awaiting collection in the Post Office
Boxes.



EEEERHBAEY REPROVISIONING OF THE HONGKONG

POST HEADQUARTERS
ERBYEEEARATSPETAE  BLEREE
BRENNEBETRE - BRSNBREBRKEANNH Hongkong Post is working closely with other relevant government

B (BIEELNLRE -« BHEHEA  RERMBRE departments to move forward the plans for reprovisioning the current

EE) BRPRENEE  NESEBEANBHTE : Hongkong Post Headquarters. District-tied facilities that are currently
=2 321 Uy N

mERBRERBMENREEE housed in the General Post Office building, including the Counter Office,

the Post Office Box Section, the Delivery Office, and the Speedpost
Section, will be reprovisioned in Central District to meet the postal needs
of the local community, while the Hongkong Post Headquarters will be
relocated to Kowloon Bay.

EBBHER 2016/17 43



iR #5 & 3% Performance Pledges 201617 201617 R
B 53] AR
Target Performance  Target

A ith 2 B BRES 4 Local and International Mail
1. ZO—R"FWA—HEZEZO—"FRA=+—HHMH:
From 1.4.2016 to 31.5.2016 :
iR T LB REMEEHRIRF R T —ETERIREREA
Deliver locally posted ordinary and registered letters to local addressees by the following working day
HZO—RFEA—HE:
From 1.6.2016 onwards :
NS R R G R EE G T ETERREREA 99.0% 99.8% | 99.0%
Small Letters: Deliver locally posted ordinary and registered Small Letters to local
addressees by the following working day

REEHRBE RS EBEIESEAZ G LB EFEMETERARERSA
Large Letters and Packets: Deliver locally posted ordinary and registered Large Letters and 99.0% 99.4% 99.0%
Packets to local addressees within 2 working days

2. REZLESBMHRREEEMIIFERE

99.0% 99.8% =

0, 0, 0,
Deliver Bulk Economy mail items according to the standards specified in the Service Leaflet 99.5% 100% e
s 8 0 e 5 P [ N
3. BEBEERE A OE T ERAIRERSEA 99.5% 100% 99.5%

Deliver Hongkong Post Circular items within 4 working days

4. HOE@ELRESFEEEBGONEEEEARE - BRI A TSR R =8 e R
BREOMZEAR - BERTEEMIN
Despatch outward ordinary and registered airmail items, posted before the advertised
latest time for posting, to the designated air carrier, subject to availability of flights
ZO—RFOA—HBEZO—R"FRA=+T—HHHE:
From 1.4.2016 to 31.5.2016:
g H BREEEXT—EIER 99.0% 99.9% -
Non-peak periods' Within the same day or the following working day

R-ZO—A"FAA—HE:
From 1.6.2016 onwards :

El=N-3-cl NEGEH BREERRT—EIEX 99.0% 99.9% 99.0%
Non-peak periods Small Letters: Within the same day or the following working day
REGEHRBE: RTEMELERRA 0 0 0
Large Letters and Packets: Within 2 working days following the day of posting 99.0% 9.9% EEEE
= 1 B NREH - REEHRBE: REEIETERRA 9 9 9
Peak periods' Small Letters, Large Letters and Packets: Within 4 working days following the 90.0% 100% ST
day of posting
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ﬁ& ﬁ% 7?‘( %g Performance Pledges 2016717 2016717 .
B =3 B
Target Performance  Target

5. ARZEHHHEBRMETIERAIRERTA

Deliver inward airmail items within 2 working days after arrival in Hong Kong

6. AMBRARBREREFA/MEBEMNEIERAANRESS  NEXFTARETEIEE
B WA - Bt & B = A TER AR E
Deliver local and inward parcels within 2 working days after day of posting or arrival, to 99.5% 99.8% 99.5%
Hong Kong, Kowloon and major commercial and industrial areas in the New Territories,
and within 3 working days to other areas

7. HOZFEHERMRETREMATRE - BIATRURTRIIEREXZETHEERITOM
QA BERTELMIM
Despatch outward air parcels, posted before the advertised latest time for posting, to the
designated air carrier, subject to availability of flights

99.0% 99.9% 99.0%

= IEHy mfETERA . . .
Non-peak periods' Within 2 working days 99.0% 99.9%  99.0%
= g B AETHERRA

Peak periods’ Within 5 working days 90.0% 100%  90.0%

8. HOXSRFEHHMMABIEFHEATIRE - A RA TR BREXEETESE
RITEMZE AR - BRRTEEME
Despatch outward bulk air mail items, posted before the advertised latest time for
posting, to the designated air carrier, subject to availability of flights

FEiEH —ETHERA

0, 0, o)
Non-peak periods' Within 3 working days 90.0% 100% I
= U H TETERA 0 0 0
Peak periods' Within 7 working days 90.0% 100% 90.0%
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Al 5 7% 56 Performance Pledges

SR EE I A it B8 BURIE Speedpost and Local CourierPost

9. FREE_LPIUM AR TSR AR TS & KI5 2 PR 51 R A e Rl 1R
Provide pick-up service for Speedpost items within the period as specified in the Service
Information Sheet

10. HABNREEHHUNETEBREKRS  IRKRTEAXEMELAT - BEAR
FEBHH
Deliver outward Speedpost items accepted before the specified latest times for posting to
air carriers on the same day, subject to availability of flights

1. ARFRZES MM EFSEFREE - Al XA —ETEXRAIREREA
Deliver inward Speedpost items on the same working day for items arriving before 6:00am

12, 730 BB BORE B 4% R 7% A 2 A 51 R R

Deliver Local CourierPost items according to the standards specified in the Service Leaflet

¥E (I AR & Retail Business
13, FEEHRMANEBE R L1070 E A EIRERE

Serve customers within 10 minutes during non-peak hours

14, FICHR /S IE R R AT 267 BN AR TS

Serve customers within 25 minutes during peak hours or periods

16, MEALIBRALAEE M TER 159 BA TR

Reset private franking machines at counters within 15 minutes

16. BAIRZEBE AT BREMTBRN TER150EANTK

Deliver products under the Local Standing Order Service at counters within 15 minutes

SHKBBEEM Philately & PostShop Products
17, BEZRERIHERRTERERERB M BRET BN

Make products available for collection under the Local Standing Order Service on the first
day of issue of the related special stamps

18. RRESINEERFRAETERATHFT BER

Despatch overseas orders within 5 working days from date of receiving the order

19. {eRBIRFE BRF NEIERAMZFAREBIRS N TE

Open new philatelic accounts within 6 working days from date of receiving the application

20.  FA MR A 310, 350 i 560 8 S 65 o R S 1 7S B TAR R IR B AT RS G W1 A
Deliver local orders for PostShop products within 6 working days from date of receiving
the order
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2016/17

B
Target

99.5%

99.5%

99.5%

99.5%

98.0%

98.0%

98.0%

98.0%

100%

100%

100%

99.0%

2016/17

E$)
Performance

100%

99.9%

99.6%

99.9%

99.3%

99.9%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2017/18

B
Target

99.5%

99.5%

99.5%

99.5%

98.0%

98.0%

98.0%

98.0%

100%

100%

100%

99.0%
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BiE =5 BiE
Target Performance Target

E TR Certification Authority
21, ETIBETERAMZEBEBBREFRERBOBRE

Process applications for Hongkong Post e-Cert within the working days stipulated below:

s BEFHE(EA) =X e BETEE (M) +X
e-Cert (Personal) 3 days e-Cert (Organisational) 10 days 99.0% 100% 99.0%
cETEE(ME) +x « ETEE(ARE) +x o ’ e
e-Cert (Encipherment) 10 days e-Cert (Server) 10 days
#3MR#E Hotlines
20 BBISENH1DABEEREESE . . .
Answer calls to Hongkong Post Hotlines within 3 rings, i.e. within 12 seconds 90.0% 98.2% 0%
I fE E B BRI K B 3E Application for Postal Services
23, ERBEIERARZ TFIRBH RS -
Process applications for the following services within 5 working days:
» HPAEAE s AIRABRFHMIESIRS
Post Office Boxes Opening of Deposit Accounts for
posting of mail in bulk
o M ERRY o EAMLAEEE N
Redirection Service Use of Private Franking Machine 100% 100% 100%
FEPE TER AP T FIPRTSEV R 35
Process applications for the following services within 4 working days:
o {8 B P AR 5 * B LIRS
Freepost Business Reply Service
o B XM E RS
International Business Reply Service
24, —ETIERAPZEBBBR LB T RENRE 100% 100% 100%
Process applications for Hongkong Post Circular Service by the following working day ° ° o
25, — (AR PB4 SRR 0 R 2 . . .
Process applications for Permit Mailing Service by the following working day 99.0% 100% 99.0%
i Notes:
i, 2016M7TEEZISEE  —O—ANEMAZE+AR-O—+E=H - i. Non-peak periods for 2016/17: April - October 2016 and March 2017.
201718FEEZFSEE : —O—+FMAZ+AR-O—/\EFE=A o Non-peak periods for 2017/18: April - October 2017 and March 2018.
i 2016M7TEE Y SIES : —O—~F+—HE—0O—+E—5 o ii. Peak periods for 2016/17: November 2016 - February 2017.

Peak periods for 2017/18: November 2017 - February 2018.

iii. Peak periods include the first day of issue of philatelic products, seasonal pressure periods
such as Christmas, Lunar New Year and the peak collection periods for government bills
(i.e. the whole month of January and the last week of April, July and October). Details of

2017M18EEzmIER : —O—+&+—AE=0—\E=A -
BEREFEENQETER FHMECAFNELHNEEHEF -
HUFIRESFSEE (BBE—AURINA - AR+ AKSE—E

2H) - SBRRAECH T ERROFE - peak hours for individual post offices are displayed in the public halls of the post office
EAEERBHNRTAREEE - LR ERS AR THRERR concerned.
B EHARARBETAEER o Sundays and public holidays are excluded for the purpose of determining the date of posting

or arrival in Hong Kong for all mail items and for performance measurement under the
performance pledges.
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Key Figures

BHBEERS Post Office Trading Fund

(a) BIEEEDRE

(b) WA UABEETTET)

(c) XHUABEBTE)

(d) EEARNABBETA)

(e) BUB(ABEMET)

(f) BEEERE(ABEETLA)

(9) £EN(BAG/NREEBHEM)
BREKAGET)

(i) BEAZK

Rate of return on Fixed Assets
Revenue (HK$ million)

Expenditure (HK$ million)

Profit from operations (HK$ million)
Traffic (Million items)

Capital Investment (HK$ million)
Productivity (item per man-hour)
Unit handling cost (HK$)

Total number of staff

2017
®5

Performance

4.7%
4,881
4,728
153
1,224
111
139
2.08

7,046

2016
"R

Performance
6.5%

4,878

4,663

215

1,197

102

139

1.98

6,934
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Report of the Director of Audit

BHEBEERS Post Office Trading Fund
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Audit Commission

The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Legislative Council

Opinion

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of
the Post Office Trading Fund set out on pages 53 to 79, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Post Office Trading Fund as at 31 March 2017, and
of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
manner provided in section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap.
430).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 7(5) of the Trading
Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing standards. My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of my report. | am independent of the Post Office Trading Fund
in accordance with those standards, and | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with those standards. | believe that the
audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my opinion.
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#:T BE RS REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

Responsibilities of the General Manager, Post Office Trading
Fund for the financial statements

The General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund is responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and section 7(4) of the
Trading Funds Ordinance, and for such internal control as the General
Manager, Post Office Trading Fund determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Manager, Post Office
Trading Fund is responsible for assessing the ability of the Post Office
Trading Fund to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Audit Commission auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

BEBBBEFIR 2016/17
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BHEB®ERS$ Post Office Trading Fund
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— obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Post Office Trading Fund’s internal control;

— evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund,;

— conclude on the appropriateness of the General Manager, Post Office
Trading Fund’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Post Office Trading Fund’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required
to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Post Office Trading Fund to cease
to continue as a going concern; and

— evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Kemhy ﬁ“’

Kenneth Ho

Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

10 October 2017

Audit Commission
26th Floor
Immigration Tower

7 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

#HZE201743A31H -4 Z for the year ended 31 March 2017
(LE#TF Tz 517 Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BHE®ERS Post Office Trading Fund

ffaE
Note 2017 2016

28 Turnover 3 4,880,501 4,878,596
BYER AN Operating costs 4 (4,727,759) (4,663,390)
E®EZH Profit from operations 152,742 215,206
HAbU A Other income 5 98,264 137,892
ERAEHRR Profit before notional profits tax 251,006 353,098
BENEH Notional profits tax 6 (41,298) (60,412)
EEEF Profit for the year 209,708 292,686
Hth2Ea= Other comprehensive income - .
FEEENES Total comprehensive income for the year 209,708 292,686
EEEELORE Rate of return on fixed assets 7 4.7% 6.5%
FLTETIBMM T AAT BRI —ED ° The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

201743 /31H as at 31 March 2017
(BB TF T3 Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BHEBEEERS Post Office Trading Fund

B EE
Note 2017 2016

FERENEE Non-current assets
W% - BB REM Property, plant and equipment 8 2,566,779 2,609,568
BIVEE Intangible assets 9 88,429 54,681
55 B E 5 Held-to-maturity securities 10 201,592 201,649
SNEE ST Placement with the Exchange Fund 11 2,258,059 2,350,183
5,114,859 5,216,081
RERE Current assets
"rE Stocks 6,901 6,562
MR - 2 & RIRNFIA Debtors, deposits and prepayments 457,971 251,820
FEU i A IR R Amounts due from related parties 19 20,257 18,336
& WM B A7 RIS Interest receivable from placement with the Exchange Fund 16,761 19,336
SNE B S TF K Placement with the Exchange Fund 11 169,680 -
SEHRAE S Held-to-maturity securities 10 - 582,279
RITER Bank deposits 982,313 520,345
& RRITH Cash and bank balances 139,812 147,953
1,793,695 1,546,631
i R Current liabilities
Be RFAWGRIE Deposits and receipts in advance (338,879) (250,670)
JERTIR TR K FE 5T Creditors and accruals (696,032) (624,452)
B SRR Provision for employee benefits 13 (77,713) (92,137)
JETREE A TIRR Amounts due to related parties 19 (409,691) (449,803)
JERT ZZEFIEH Notional profits tax payable (11,977) (46,263)
(1,534,292) (1,463,325)
REDEERE Net current assets 259,403 83,306
HAERERDAR Total assets less current liabilities 5,374,262 5,299,387
ERBRER Non-current liabilities
BB Deferred tax 12 (45,220) (39,663)
(ESEERE S Provision for employee benefits 13 (496,936) (490,983)
(542,156) (530,646)
BERE NET ASSETS 4,832,106 4,768,741
9301 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
BERTER Trading fund capital 14 2,495,059 2,495,059
BRER Development reserve 15 243,664 243,664
REBMN Retained earnings 16 2,093,383 2,030,018
4,832,106 4,768,741
213 A8 -3 Gordon Leung
HHESEESAKE General Manager,
20179 10A10H Post Office Trading Fund
10 October 2017
FELIRTIEMM T ARMBREMN—F D ° The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial statements.
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IEREER
Statement of Changes in Equity

#HZ201743H31H 14 Z for the year ended 31 March 2017
(LE#TF Tz 57 Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BHE®ERS Post Office Trading Fund

2017 2016

FmEeR Balance at beginning of year 4,768,741 4,647,294
FEA2EKT Total comprehensive income for the year 209,708 292,686
FRHEMFERE Dividend paid during the year (146,343) (171,239)
FREES Balance at end of year 4,832,106 4,768,741
FLTETIBMM T AAT BRI —FD ° The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

# 2201743 H31H 14 for the year ended 31 March 2017
(L E#ETF T3 7R Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BHEBEEERS Post Office Trading Fund

s 2017 2016
Note

EERHMBR&RE Cash flows from operating activities
BIERA Profit from operations 152,742 215,206
M RERBJMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 107,578 117,271
BB EEH Amortisation of intangible assets 9,102 9,337
HE /Y% - REBKFEMEIR  Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,970 3,069
CRIASIBNAERER Unrealised foreign exchange loss on financial
EiE instruments 2,941 6,363
1B B ER Decrease in provision for employee benefits (8.471) (1,808)
FERIIR SR A28 / () Increase / (Decrease) in creditors and deposits 163,579 (228,014)
(Decrease) / Increase in amounts due to related
FE BB AL IRFR G ) 7 800 parties (40,598) 27,845
FEUE = R E 1240 Increase in debtors and stocks (208,949) (3,577)
FE U B A IR FRIE AN Increase in amounts due from related parties (1,921) (836)
B 2EFEH Notional profits tax paid (70,027) (64,564)
FREBERENE SRR Net cash from operating activities 108,946 80,292
BRBEREHBR&RE Cash flows from investing activities
RAEHIR A=A EMRITER  (Increase) / Decrease in bank deposits with original
(#50) /3w maturity over three months (641,313) 625
BARZEHRNES Purchase of held-to-maturity securities - (323,559)
ERIFEERNES Redemption of held-to-maturity securities 578,916 321,679
SNEE S 7 RIE N Increase in placement with the Exchange Fund (77,556) (122,521)
BEWE  RBRBJHMM Purchase of property, plant and equipment
BIVEE and intangible assets (113,991) (114,385)
Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
HEWHE - Rl REBEMH K equipment 77 333
BF B Interest received 103,778 143,513
AERBHEEMTARBHE Net cash used in investing activities (150,089) (94,315)
MRFEHR&RE Cash flows from financing activity
BEfRE Dividend paid (146,343) (171,239)
AtRmERENE&2NE Net cash used in financing activity (146,343) (171,239)
HeRERRAELKVBEHE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (187,486) (185,262)
SRR SFREAE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 668,298 853,560
FRPBEREARSE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18 480,812 668,298
FSIETIEMM T AR EREMN—ED ° The notes on pages 57 to 79 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(B4 BlaERAS -

LB F TS -

Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHBEERS Post Office Trading Fund

1. —RER
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General

The Post Office Trading Fund (POTF) was established on 1 August 1995
under the Legislative Council Resolution passed on 19 July 1995 pursuant
to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430).

The principal activities of the POTF are provision of general postal and

ancillary services, and electronic authentication services after the POTF

became a Recognised Certification Authority in January 2000. With

effect from April 2007, electronic authentication services are provided

through a contractor under the supervision of the POTF.

Significant accounting policies

(a)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs),
a collective term which includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the POTF is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is historical cost.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.
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(BRHFSIEBRS) - 2 LB T TSR ©
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHEBEERS Post Office Trading Fund
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the
application of the POTF's accounting policies. There are also no
key assumptions concerning the future, or other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the POTF on 1
August 1995 were measured initially at deemed cost equal to
the value contained in the Resolution of the Legislative Council
for the setting up of the POTF. Property, plant and equipment
acquired since 1 August 1995 are capitalised at the actual cost of
acquisition or installation.

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
(note 2(e)):

— land classified as held under a finance lease and buildings held
for own use situated thereon;

— other buildings held for own use appropriated to the POTF. The
land is regarded as a non-depreciating asset; and

— plant and equipment, including furniture and fittings, plant and
machinery, motor vehicles and computer systems.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Land classified as held
under a finance lease

over the unexpired term of lease

— Buildings situated on
leasehold land

over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated

useful lives
— Other buildings 20 to 40 years
— Furniture and fittings 5 years

— Plant and machinery 7 to 15 years

— Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

— Computer systems 5 years

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income on the date of disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and
capitalised development costs of computer software programs.
Expenditure on development of computer software programs is
capitalised if the programs are technically feasible and the POTF
has sufficient resources and intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes direct labour and cost of
materials. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2(e)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the assets'’
estimated useful lives of 5 years.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Impairment of fixed assets

()

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period to identify any indication of impairment. If any such

indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement

of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an asset

exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset

is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Financial assets and financial liabilities

0]

Initial recognition

The POTF classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities
into different categories at inception, depending on the
purpose for which the assets were acquired or the liabilities
were incurred. The categories are: loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity securities and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially
at fair value, which normally equals to the transaction prices
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets or issue of the financial
liabilities.

The POTF recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on
the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are accounted for at settlement date.



B #% ¥R 3 My == NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B BIFERES) » 2 BB BT LIS ©
Amount expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.)

BHBEERS Post Office Trading Fund

2. TEETERE)
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(i) 28 (i) Categorisation
B RENKIR Loans and receivables

BRI AR TR A H B 3 AT ARERE X
&8 BEERMERERE - ML
BECEERBERZMENFTES
BEE - SEN BB ERYIRK - BU
BEANLIRT - BUEFIE - SNEESTF
R RITEARMRE RRITAEE o

BN MR IR AR BB N R IR
SR BB ERE (1A ) 51k (P
FE2(f)(iv)) °
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X BARZEREEXSRAGN
IREDFEMERMERER - 2EES
EEERMNEE  @E8ERTA
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AEMBERYTE -

FFER RN R %
FERMOE 5 BABIE A AT
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FTESREE  BENAERREK
IRIREREFRID ©
RERPMOBEZFERAERN R AE

SR AN E BRI EE 18 (A ) Bl iR
(MFEE2(f)(iv)) ©

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and which the POTF has no intention of trading.
This category includes debtors, amounts due from related
parties, interest receivable, placement with the Exchange
Fund, bank deposits and cash and bank balances.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses, if any (note

2(f)(iv)).

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the POTF estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees received or paid between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
which the POTF has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity, other than those that meet the definition of loans
and receivables.

Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less impairment losses, if any
(note 2(f)(iv)).
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2. FEEFERE)
() EMEERSMEBE(E)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(i) 2E(E)
EmsMEE
Hith & Bt B E R A B R AR
B AMEFIIR ©
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Categorisation (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
where the financial asset together with substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or when
it expires.

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, an impairment loss
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate. If in a subsequent
period the amount of such impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

(g) Stocks
Stocks consist of postage stamps and aerogrammes held in the

stamp vaults at the Headquarters. They are stated at the lower of

cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-

in, first-out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling

price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

(i)

G

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances,
and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity when placed or acquired.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the POTF has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Employee benefits

The employees of the POTF comprise civil servants and contract
staff. Salaries, staff gratuities, and annual leave entitlements are
accrued and recognised as expenditure in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by the staff. For civil servants, staff
on-costs, including pensions and housing benefits provided to the
staff by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the Government), are charged as expenditure in the year
in which the associated services are rendered.

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their pension
liabilities are discharged by reimbursement of the staff on-cost
charged by the Government. For other staff, contributions to
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged to the statement
of comprehensive income as incurred.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Notional profits tax

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The POTF has no tax liability under the Inland Revenue
Ordinance (Cap. 112). However, the Government requires
the POTF to pay to the General Revenue an amount in lieu
of profits tax (i.e. notional profits tax) calculated on the basis
of the provisions of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. Notional
profits tax expense for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the assets can be utilised, are
recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such deduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(I) Revenue recognition
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(i) Revenue from postal services is recognised as the services are
provided. Allowance for a measured share of stamp income
for the amount of revenue from postage stamps sold in
respect of which postal service has not yet been provided is
made at the end of the reporting period.

(i) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

(i) Realised gains or losses on financial instruments are recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income when the financial
instruments are derecognised.

(iv) Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

(m) Terminal dues and charges

Cross-border mail service requires cooperation between postal
operators in different countries or regions. The costs for delivery
of mail items incurred by the postal operator in the destination
country or region have to be recovered from the postal operator
in the originating country or region. Such costs are terminal
dues for letters, and charges for parcels and express mail service
(collectively referred to as terminal dues and charges). The rates
applicable to terminal dues are determined by the Universal
Postal Union every four years. The rates applicable to parcels can
be adjusted according to inflation whereas those applicable to
express mail service are determined by individual postal operators
annually. Nevertheless, a postal operator may enter into bilateral
agreements with another operator to determine the rates of
terminal dues and charges.

Terminal dues and charges recoverable from other postal operators
are included under Turnover - General mail services (note 3).
Terminal dues and charges payable to other postal operators are
included under Operating costs - General mail operating expenses
(note 4). They are recognised in the accounts when the volume
(i.e. weight and number of mail items) of mail processed and the
applicable rates of charge can be measured / estimated reliably.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Terminal dues and charges (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

When a new rate of charge for a period is being negotiated between
the POTF and another postal operator, the amount of charges
during that period will be determined based on an estimated rate,
which is equal to the rate in force for the preceding period. If the
new agreed rate of charge is different from the estimated rate,
an adjustment representing the difference between the amount
of charges calculated under the new agreed rate and that under
the estimated rate will be recognised in the year the new rate is
agreed.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars using the spot exchange rates at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong
Kong dollars using the closing exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period. All foreign currency translation differences are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Related parties

The POTF is a separate accounting entity within the Government
established under the Trading Funds Ordinance. During the year,
the POTF has entered into transactions with various related parties,
including government bureaux and departments, trading funds
and financially autonomous bodies controlled or significantly
influenced by the Government, in the ordinary course of its
business.

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period. There have been no changes to the accounting
policies applied in the financial statements for the years presented
as a result of these developments.

The POTF has not applied any new HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current accounting period (note 22).
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R Turnover
2017 2016
— AR LI AR 75 General mail services 4,710,730 4,709,574
IR Miscellaneous revenue 169,771 169,022
4,880,501 4,878,596
EERAK Operating costs
2017 2016
8 TR Staff costs 2,715,585 2,641,037
— BB IEEEFRE General mail operating expenses 1,652,336 1,656,864
HekEEE Rental and management charges 217,064 203,421
e N Depreciation and amortisation 116,680 126,608
PRITHE R Central administration overheads 13,813 24,076
miSHESEA Marketing expenses 9,986 9,181
EirEH Audit fees 2,295 2,203
4,727,759 4,663,390
Hg A Other income

REATIEARFEFIRD
SREENTISKA

FrEHWEES Held-to-maturity securities

SNEE DR Placement with the Exchange Fund
RITIFR Bank deposits

RITAEGR R M Bank balances and others

Interest income from financial assets not

at fair value

2017 2016

14,872 20,727
74,982 111,646
8,159 5,313
251 206
98,264 137,892
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(a) The notional profits tax charged to the statement of comprehensive

6. BRAE Notional profits tax
(a) R2EWRERATRHBRFEH
me income is arrived at as follows:
EHIH™ Current tax

AEFEARNEHA R
BB

ERutEREMELRED
ERFEHR

2017 2016
Provision for notional profits tax for

the year 35,741 56,467
Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 5,557 3,945

Notional profits tax 41,298 60,412

(b) BIEXHESTENRERABRTE
HYEIRIT

(b) The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

2017 2016

applicable tax rates is as follows:

ZEMSBHATE M

REBMEHE16.5%(2016 : 16.5%)
SHEmEIE

— KRB IEER

AR X H B B 2

FRERTBANTIELE

HEBEZH

Profit before notional profits tax 251,006 353,098

Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate

of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) 41,416 58,261
One-off tax reduction (20) (20)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,476 3,850
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (1,574) (1,679)
Notional tax expense 41,298 60,412

7. BEEERBRE
BrEERREENBEEZENE (TE
EAMEWAMFMELZ H)BRUREEE
FHFEMEHNAEIE - BEEEES
B SERRMNEREE - B
MHRARIRERE HHEEESAE
NN EFETEEREBERMERS59%
(2016: 5.9%) °
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Rate of return on fixed assets

The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive income
(excluding interest income and interest expenses) divided by average net fixed
assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed assets include property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. The POTF is expected to meet a target rate
of return on fixed assets of 5.9% (2016: 5.9%) per year as determined by the
Financial Secretary.
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8. ¥ JRERSEM Property, plant and equipment

THREF RAREE  REREW R ERAS

Land and Furniture  Plant and Motor  Computer

buildings and fittings machinery vehicles systems
5% 3 Cost
M20155E4818 At 1 April 2015 3,268,907 524,129 576,693 77,638 126,249 4,573,616
FEA Additions - 28,259 13,627 5,509 31,225 78,620
HE /8 Disposals - (64,105) (16,666) (9,934) (29,408) (120,113)
M®201643H318 At 31 March 2016 3,268,907 488,283 573,654 73,213 128,066 4,532,123
720164818 At 1 April 2016 3,268,907 488,283 573,654 73,213 128,066 4,532,123
A Additions - 23,151 37,947 3,194 3,791 68,083
& /58 Disposals - (32,376) (33,585) (2,519) (13,762) (82,242)
#20175%3A318 At 31 March 2017 3,268,907 479,058 578,016 73,888 118,095 4,517,964
REtinE Accumulated depreciation
®2015F4818 At 1 April 2015 914,669 450,008 419,187 56,743 81,255 1,921,862
FRNEA Charge for the year 42,329 27,925 33,760 7,046 6,211 117,271
HE /sEiEEE Written back on disposal - (62,748) (14,593) (9,839) (29,398) (116,578)
2016438318 At 31 March 2016 956,998 415,185 438,354 53,950 58,068 1,922,555
7201654818 At 1 April 2016 956,998 415,185 438,354 53,950 58,068 1,922,555
FRNEA Charge for the year 27,116 21,328 36,314 7,391 15,429 107,578
HE /3E8EEE Written back on disposal - (29,764) (32,915) (2,518) (13,751) (78,948)
#20175%3A318 At 31 March 2017 984,114 406,749 441,753 58,823 59,746 1,951,185
IRER{E Net book value
2017%E3A318 31 March 2017 2,284,793 72,309 136,263 15,065 58,349 2,566,779
2016%3A31H 31 March 2016 2,311,909 73,098 135,300 19,263 69,998 2,609,568
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9. BVEE

Intangible assets

E BRI ES:

2%

Computer software licences and
system development costs

2017 2016
5% 3 Cost
F1 At beginning of year 320,254 366,940
BA Additions 42,850 23,045
HE /T8 Disposals (64,475) (69,731)
FUR At end of year 298,629 320,254
Rty Accumulated amortisation
F4 At beginning of year 265,573 324,353
FNEA Charge for the year 9,102 9,337
R /a8 Written back on disposal (64,475) (68,117)
FIR At end of year 210,200 265,573
IR E R E Net book value
FUR At end of year 88,429 54,681
10. BEHRNES Held-to-maturity securities
2017 2016

B 5 AR AT Debt securities at amortised cost:
-REBLEM — Listed in Hong Kong 201,592 201,649
- Lk — Unlisted - 582,279

201,592 783,928
FIFRFH - Remaining maturity:
TER—F Within one year - 582,279
—FE A E Over one year 201,592 201,649

201,592 783,928
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11.

12.
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EARERRERNFE - X&BE12E
B (TEHBER] )M 7EBL( KB
F) o ZMIETRAERAF(BFEXRER
iF) - BT REIRIAS o

SNERSTFRMBIESFI1AEENETES
Rit8 o  ZEXRESREMABERT
WEHFERERR  R=FHINEES
&5 (201651 A1 BB ERA = FHIBTF
EHF)ELE—EAFENTFHFE R - WE
BERSE  TRAE0% - 2017FET B8R
BEE28% ' 2016F AFEF33% °

LEECERBEAGTNED  RERE
I BR201745 A BRFHEI S E A A
BIRFREREBAA S -

EIEBEH
ERTIRR = R R T B
b REEREBT -
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Placement with the Exchange Fund

The total balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted to
HK$2,427.7 million (2016: HK$2,350.2 million), being the principal sums
of HK$2,170 million (2016: HK$2,170 million) plus interest paid but not yet
withdrawn at the end of the reporting period of HK$257.7 million (2016:
HK$180.2 million). The principal sums consisted of HK$1,200 million (the
"“First Placement”) and HK$970 million (the “Second Placement”). The
term of the placements is six years from the date of placement, during
which the amount of principal sums cannot be withdrawn.

Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined every January.
The rate is the average annual investment return of the Exchange Fund’s
Investment Portfolio for the past six years or the average annual yield of
three-year Exchange Fund Notes (three-year Government Bonds with effect
from 1 January 2016) for the previous year subject to a minimum of zero
percent, whichever is the higher. The interest rate has been fixed at 2.8%
per annum for the year 2017 and at 3.3% per annum for the year 2016.

The POTF has renewed the First Placement for another six years and
withdrawn all the interest earned from the First Placement upon maturity
of the First Placement in May 2017.

Deferred tax

Major components of deferred tax recognised in the statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as follows:

BEAEBETER
BETERBE
Depreciation
allowances Hit
TRMER
Other
temporary

differences

in excess of

the related
depreciation and
amortisation

201554 B 1B &8

REERaE R
201653 F31H&H

2016F4F 1 B4R

REERERIR
201743 A31 8%

Balance at 1 April 2015 36,982 (1,264) 35,718
Charged to statement of

comprehensive income 3,713 232 3,945
Balance at 31 March 2016 40,695 (1,032) 39,663
Balance at 1 April 2016 40,695 (1,032) 39,663
Charged to statement of

comprehensive income 5,213 344 5,557
Balance at 31 March 2017 45,908 (688) 45,220
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13. EERFRE Provision for employee benefits

AT EREHERB AR RS This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave and
HBTEEFERNEENEEN MMNESHIEET obligations on contract-end gratuities payable to contract staff for services

BE(SRMEE2()) - rendered up to the end of the reporting period (also see note 2(j)).
14. §BEESER Trading fund capital

L ABAHEERSHIRE - This represents the Government'’s investment in the POTF.
15. BRH1E Development reserve

2017 2016

FH) R AR Balance at beginning and end of year 243,664 243,664

20173 A3 BERERERENES - 7] The balance at 31 March 2017 is uncommitted and is earmarked for future

FAYERS PR AETF B R - development.
16. RE R F Retained earnings

FEEER Balance at beginning of year 2,030,018 1,908,571
Total comprehensive income for

FEHA2E K the year 209,708 292,686
Dividend paid in respect of the year

DX MBEE2016F3A31 B IEFEMRE ended 31 March 2016 (146,343) -
Dividend paid in respect of the year

EXBEHE2015F3A31HLFEARE ended 31 March 2015 - (112,617)
Dividend paid in respect of the year

EXMBEE2014F3A31BLEEENRE ended 31 March 2014 - (58,622)

FIREE Balance at end of year 2,093,383 2,030,018
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17.

18.

19.

BRERE

EEZE2017F3A831HLLTFE  BREFE
BErERSNEHEEBEREERRRZ
HEREEZEEESHAI50% (2016
50%) B EIRELLE - 2EESET1.049
BITARE (2016 : 1.463188 L) °
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Proposed dividend

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the POTF proposed a dividend
of HK$104.9 million (2016: HK$146.3 million), based on the total
comprehensive income for the year and the target dividend payout ratio

of 50% (2016: 50%) stated in the annual business plan approved by the

Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury.

ReRERRE Cash and cash equivalents
2017 2016
Be MIRTTH R Cash and bank balances 139,812 147,953
BITFER Bank deposits 982,313 520,345
1,122,125 668,298

Less: Bank deposits with original
W REHR A=A ERRITER maturity over three months (641,313) =
RERFRARE Cash and cash equivalents 480,812 668,298

BEEATHRS
BRTEAMBREABIRBENZSHIN
FREBAEATHNEMEEZISH MM
T

(a) BEECRBETHEALORERE
—MEBERRE R RAEBEORER
% o REELRBHMALIER3.310
BABTT(2016 : 248888 L) :

(b) BEATRETEEESHRSEBE
BER - EDRIRT - 3FFIRT - 18
FEBRMEE  WRAMHRE  FR
TREERY - s LRENZ L8
R 52.0701878 7L (2016 : 2.214187%
TT)

Related party transactions

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other

material related party transactions for the year are summarised as follows:

(a

services provided to related parties included general postal services
and agency services, which are compatible with postal related services.
The total revenue derived from these services amounted to HK$331.0
million (2016: HK$248.8 million);

services received from related parties included computer services,

printing services, training services, building management and

maintenance, rental of accommodation, central administration and
auditing services. The total cost incurred on these services amounted
to HK$207.0 million (2016: HK$221.4 million);
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19. HEBEALHRS (&) Related party transactions (continued)

() B ERSMBAEATEABRTEE  BES
HHBHEETIRE BEIHWEREF &
BEREW  BEREGREBRH SLEED
XA #EEE /52,0808 87T (2016 ¢ 1,4908 78

JT)

(d) LEESCHRSAANBIRESRETFEER
BESBUSER - FA - BUTEFR7008%
70(2016 - 1,1208 8T Bt & EE /A
Rk - BZ=2017F3A318 @ £
AT —EFENBRFRRERE 4088
J0(2016 : 1,6908%7T) : AR

(e) BEESEARMNBNERANYEINEE
TmERE EEBREMNBEEMEMRESA
2006 FAHREBINE R o R BEIE B
ZEMERELHA2009-10FF L ESHR
SEAEABHABNAETEMESAIE2011-
NREERESHE  EBFALHTNEY
BHE2017F3A31HIENFE - ZN\FHEE
MESHEBRR32308F THREME
FA£ (2016 : 3,2908/87T) °

[ RAE A LIRSk R B E A T RREMRTS - A0
BRARER  WESKBEARAAANNE
A mZERGRARHTEEAL  WERIRE
ERU B AR AR ERR U - HEEA T HENETEE
EREWMUATE -

HZE2017F3A31HEBEA THBRNEHRTIHE
RE AR K o
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(0)

(d)

acquisition of fixed assets from related parties included fitting out
projects of post offices, acquisition of land and buildings, plant
and machinery, computer systems and motor vehicles. The total
cost of these assets amounted to HK$20.8 million (2016: HK$14.9
million);

the POTF received government grants relating to the provision
of electronic services through a contractor. During the year,
government grants of HK$7.0 million (2016: HK$11.2 million)
were deducted from the related expenses incurred by the POTF.
As at 31 March 2017, the balance of government grants carried
forward to the next year amounted to HK$16.4 million (2016:
HK$16.9 million); and

the POTF is required to pay notional market rental on premises
leased from the Government. The notional market rental for the
Airport Post Office has been waived by the Government since
April 2006. Subject to annual approval by the Government, the
notional market rental for Tsim Sha Tsui Post Office has been
waived since 2009-10 and the notional market rentals for another
six post offices have been waived since 2011-12. For the year
ended 31 March 2017, the notional market rentals waived for
these eight leased premises amounted to HK$32.3 million (2016:
HK$32.9 million).

Services rendered to or received from related parties which were

also available to the public were charged at the rates payable by the

general public. Services which were available only to related parties

were charged on a full cost recovery basis. Fixed assets supplied by

related parties were charged at full cost.

Balances with related parties as at 31 March 2017 are set out in the

statement of financial position.
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20. &I

(a)

BEAREE
F2017F3A31H - 2 BESREENER
RAELBEANEARAZENT

Co
(a)
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mmitments

Capital commitments

At 31 March 2017, the POTF had capital commitments, so far as
not provided for in the financial statements, as follows:

2017 2016
Authorised and
B RELD contracted for 28,809 49,965
Authorised but not yet
ERERRARLD contracted for 111,574 83,418
140,383 133,383
(b) REHERIE (b) Operating lease commitments

20173 A31H » TREECHEMNEEM X
REHENARZREEEHBENT :

At 31 March 2017, the total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases for leased properties

were payable as follows:

Not later than one year 124,252 112,337

Later than one year but not
later than five years 294,141 254,864
Later than five years 1,160,175 1,223,969
1,578,568 1,591,170

21. R EE

(a)

REHEK

REHBENMBARR  £EEcRHELR
BREENERTANKREMAS - REMEEE
REEHRNES  INEESTFRRRITE
R BEESTHREMBCRIANKRER
BRAKE -

Financial risk management

(a) Investment policy

To provide an ancillary source of income, surplus cash is invested in

a portfolio of financial instruments. The portfolio includes held-to-

maturity securities, placement with the Exchange Fund and bank

deposits. It is the POTF's policy that all investments in financial

instruments should be principal-protected.
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21. MKREBERE(E)
(b) E¥E

Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Currency risk

EREREERTANQAFHEIARKRER
EENEXEFMRBNER - £EEESE
ERHINERR  YEBEENBREER L
SNEGH  WRELEEESHELEEBRR
REWRBTE -

FN - 2EEASTEEERERAERAER
W FEAS08/B (2016 : [EXREETFHE
1,470887T) ©

TREBSEESNBEHNEREMINER,
B

ETT US dollar

AR Renminbi

B TT Euro

R RIHR AR Special Drawing Rights

Hih oM Other foreign currencies

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in currency
exchange rates. The POTF monitors its foreign currency exposure
and may consider to enter into foreign exchange contracts when
circumstances arise to protect it from the impact of currency
fluctuation during the normal course of business.

During the year, the POTF recognised a net exchange gain of
HK$0.5 million (2016: a net exchange loss of HK$14.7 million) in
the statement of comprehensive income.

The table below summarises the POTF’s foreign currency exposure
at the end of the reporting period:

2017 2016
BE a1 BE BE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
318,951 22,134 282,703 16,507
66 4 156,015 7
11,336 3,529 10,451 2,599
152,668 464,372 72,204 287,925
12,555 15 18,723 401
495,576 490,054 540,096 307,439

ERERAT —EAMBFENETLET
=S IBIE R TR N/ 2 0.5% ° 1A
RN/ RO EREHRERAEE - K5
EHacEREEeEm mA120848 T
(2016 : 11084 7T) °

EEBEINRRAT —EMBEERFRIRRK
BRETUIINEMEE LB TERTSE
B T AT BE3G N/ 5% o tR7a Ba 3 A0/ R
LERESPERARE  AFENLEEE
Wesas g R /18 n1,2208 %L (2016 ¢
14084 T) °

RELEBRESINE - EREEXNED
ERANERSHERAFANERTA -
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The management considers a 0.5% increase / decrease in the
exchange rate of the US dollar against the Hong Kong dollar in
the coming financial year to be reasonably possible. Had such an
increase / decrease occurred at the end of the reporting period,
the total comprehensive income for the year would have been
increased / decreased by HK$1.2 million (2016: HK$1.1 million).

The management also considers a 5% increase / decrease in the
exchange rates of Special Drawing Rights and foreign currencies
other than US dollar against the Hong Kong dollar in the coming
financial year to be reasonably possible. Had such an increase /
decrease occurred at the end of the reporting period, the total
comprehensive income for the year would have been decreased /
increased by HK$12.2 million (2016: HK$1.4 million).

The above sensitivity analyses have been prepared assuming that
the change in exchange rates had been applied to the financial
instruments in existence at the end of the reporting period.
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21. BKRABERE(E)

(9]

(d)

FREBR
MERERER TSN X EFH M5 HERNE
B o MR ATE— D R/AFENERER
RBEREMRER

AYEMNXEBRESRTANRAFEERAD
BHEREEMEEBER - HREEESH
RITERRFEMROEFEFREE N RFE
ME  ETBNELA  ELEENQATE
BETH - A - ARNELEEDIZEHNK
AMEFIR - mBHEESH I e@FEHIREE
REBETHBI RS

ReRnENEERESBTANRRRER
EEAMBMEXEHMRBOER - EEE
SEANHEANRSRENEAR - AR
HEANIZ2EMIAL TRFEM -

FERRE
FERBRESHTAN-IHEESRAREE
BOEEMSIBE - A RZHBEINE
B e

LEESAMERRERREAEELTER
HHEFPREFIRAERHSBOHBEIR
% - HENZZHFOERRRAZNEE
BTURR - SAWEBRARSRBERZ
RBHUFONFTRAREERR - —RET
IR IR ©

AREMERRER - A EHERIFH
REBHIRRLT -
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Financial risk management (continued)

(0

(d)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in
market interest rates. This can be further classified into fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Since all of the POTF's bank deposits and held-to-
maturity securities bear interest at fixed rates, their fair values will
fall when market interest rates increase. However, as they are all
stated at amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will not
affect their carrying amounts and the POTF’s profit and reserves.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The POTF's exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is
small as it has no major floating-rate investments.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will
fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur
a financial loss.

The POTF has policies in place to ensure that wholesale postal
services are provided to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Credit exposure to an individual counterparty is restricted
by credit limits. The counterparty’s payment profile and credit
exposure are continuously monitored by respective management.
Postal services to retail customers are substantially settled in cash.

To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with licensed
banks in Hong Kong.
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21. MKREBERE(E)

(d) FERR(E)
SNEES RN EERBRBRE -

EHRSHERA  RBEHRNESFNEER
BEREMON (HFAERERS  SELH
KBREENFRFOREEZER/E)OT

Financial risk management (continued)

(d)

Credit risk (continued)
For the placement with the Exchange Fund, the credit risk is
considered to be low.

At the end of the reporting period, the credit quality of
investments in held-to-maturity securities, analysed by the lower
of ratings designated by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s or Fitch’s,

2017 2016

was as follows:

BREEFRIIHNRERRNES

Aal = Aa3/ AA+ = AA-
Al = A3/ A+ E A-

Held-to-maturity securities
by credit rating

Aal to Aa3 / AA+ to AA- 201,592 416,649
Al to A3/ A+ to A- - 367,279
201,592 783,928

LEESRHACREEMAAENRZSEE
REBASENEREHERBANIKREE

(e) RBESREMR
mBETRRERBARETRES A ERR
B B R B B R 2 L o

EEERDESARIE  £EETRBE
AMENREBERERERPES - BF
ANENMEIRAEMRENNERHK

() HogmEE
LEHSEANESFIAEENINERESTER
BERE)MNEDHMAEDEMBRERRE - R
2017438318 » F£2016F 20174 B X
N/ R A SO MR E B H A = R EH) BN
T AEFERF R EERKE M K1,010
B%7r(2016 : 9808 L) °
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(e)

(f)

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets of the
POTF is equal to their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in
meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The POTF manages liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of
cash required and monitoring its working capital to ensure that all
liabilities due and known funding requirements could be met.

Other financial risk

The POTF is exposed to financial risk arising from change in the
interest rate on the placement with the Exchange Fund which is
determined every January (note 11). It was estimated that, as at
31 March 2017, a 50 basis point increase / decrease in the interest
rates for 2016 and 2017, with all other variables held constant,
would increase / decrease the profit for the year and reserves by
HK$10.1 million (2016: HK$9.8 million).
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22. CHEAEREZE2017F3A8318 LEEE K
EMMIERT - TEARZEBN RS E

BEEAMBRREL 2B - BASHMASEHE
MmZIEIEE - MEANRRE  EHPREREE
201793 A3 BIE SR FE R AER KL BIRA
TEARMBREPEMNISET - SER RERE - B
LERESBBAMNZEEE]  MERRRERE

ELLT BEIE
ZEBBEHN
SETHEER
BB REEREI ¢ 2018%F1A1H
[&RTA]
BB EIRELERIFE 155 ¢ 2018F1A1H
[REZFEHZIAI
BBMBRELRIF 1655 201951 A 1H
[fE]
EEBEECIERZEER] LA RZREESNIRAH

MRS ELNTEETHE -EERAMAL - &8
RSB ERARMZFER  TEA RREIAR
EEHLERASHUBRABREATE

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2017 and
which have not been early adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the POTF:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with 1 January 2018
Customers

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019

The POTF is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected
to be in the period of initial adoption. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
financial statements.
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